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A. PARTIES AND SUBJECT PROPERTY 
 

Recipient 
 
Wayne County Housing Authority  
303 N. 1st Street 
Fairfield, IL 62837 
 
Subject Property 
 
310 S.E. 3rd Street 
Fairfield, IL 62837  

 
B. BACKGROUND 
 

On or about March 31, 2008, Angela and Brian Scherer, filed complaints with the 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development ("Department" or 
"HUD") alleging that Wayne County Housing Authority (“WCHA” or 
“Recipient”), Jill Masterson, individually and as the executive director of WCHA, 
and Danna Sutton, individually and as the assistant director of WCHA, violated the 
Fair Housing Act as amended in 1998, 42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq. (the “Act”).   
WCHA is a public housing authority that receives federal financial assistance 
through an Annual Contributions Contract with HUD.   WCHA uses this funding, in 
part, to finance the Section 8 voucher program.  Because WCHA is a recipient of 
federal financial assistance, a complaint was also filed under Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 (“Title VI”), Case Number 05-08-0787-6.  Title VI prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin in programs and 
activities receiving federal financial assistance.    
 
HUD’s Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity conducted a fair housing 
investigation and found violations of both Title VI and Title VIII.  On January 20, 
2009, HUD’s Office of Regional Counsel issued a Charge of Discrimination against 
WCHA, Jill Masterson and Danna Sutton alleging violations of Sections 3604(c) 
and 3617 of the Act.  Shortly thereafter, HUD’s Office of Administrative Law 
Judges issued a notice of election and, on February 20, 2009, the Civil Rights 
Division of the U.S. Department of Justice filed a complaint in the United States 
District Court for the Southern District of Illinois against WCHA, Jill Masterson 
and Danna Sutton (Civil Action No. 09-141-WDS) alleging violations of 42 U.S.C. 
§ § 3604(b), 3604(c) and 3617.   
 
This Voluntary Compliance Agreement ("Agreement") addresses the subject 
complaint under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.   The resolution of the 
Title VI case against WCHA shall have no impact on the pending Title VIII 
litigation. 
 



 3 

Based upon the evidence obtained during the course of its investigations of the 
subject complaints, the Department issued a finding of non-compliance with the 
non-discrimination requirements of Title VI, and also issued a Charge of 
Discrimination under Title VIII.  Specifically, the Department found that Recipient 
initially failed the housing inspection of a rental property owned by Complainants, 
located in Fairfield, Illinois, and that  its agents made discriminatory statements to 
Angela and Brian Scherer, in an effort to dissuade Complainants from renting to an 
African-American Section 8 Housing Choice voucher holder.    

 
C. EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
1. This Agreement shall become effective on the date on which it is approved by the 

Director, Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity ("FHEO"), Chicago Regional Office 
of HUD.  The term of this Agreement shall be two (2) years from the effective date 
of this Agreement. 

 
D. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
2. The parties acknowledge that this Agreement is a voluntary and full settlement of 

the disputed complaints filed in accordance with Title VI, HUD Case Number 05-
08-0787-6.  The Recipient affirms that it has read and fully understands the terms 
set forth herein.  The Recipient has not been coerced, intimidated, threatened, or in 
any way forced to become a party to this Agreement.  

 
3. Recipient acknowledges that it has an affirmative duty not to discriminate, and that it 

is unlawful to retaliate against any person because that person has made a complaint, 
testified, assisted, or participated in any manner in a proceeding under Title VI or 
Title VIII.    

 
4. This Agreement, after it has been approved by the FHEO Regional Director, or his 

or her designee, is binding upon Recipient, its board members, employees, heirs, 
executors, successors, assigns and all others in active concert with it.     

 
5. It is understood that upon approval of this Agreement by the FHEO Regional 

Director, or his or her designee, it is a public document. 
 

6. This Agreement does not, in any way, limit or restrict the Department’s authority to 
investigate any other complaint involving Recipient made pursuant to Title VI or 
Title VIII, or any other complaint within the Department’s jurisdiction.        

 
7. No amendment to, modification of, or waiver of any provisions of this Agreement 

shall be effective unless:  (a) all signatories or their successors to the Agreement 
agree in writing to the amendment, modification or waiver; (b) the amendment, 
modification or waiver is in writing; and (c) the amendment, modification, or 
waiver is approved and signed by the FHEO Regional Director. 
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E. RELIEF IN THE PUBLIC INTEREST 
 
8.   Recipient agrees to take the following actions in the public interest in order to 

fully comply with Title VI:  
 

a) Suspension of Employment 
 

1. Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this Agreement, 
Recipient will implement employment suspensions in accordance with 
this subsection.  
 

2. Recipient shall suspend the employment of Assistant Director Danna 
Sutton, without compensation, for a period of at least forty (45) days.  

 
i. In the alternative to the suspension of Assistant Director Danna 

Sutton provided in Paragraph E (8)(a)(1) set forth above, the 
Recipient may certify within sixty (60) days of the effective date of 
this Agreement that Sutton has submitted her resignation and 
Recipient has accepted that resignation.  Recipient shall not 
consider Sutton for re-employment for a two-year period from the 
effective date of this Agreement. 

 
b) Recipient shall suspend the employment of Executive Director Jill Masterson, 

without compensation, for a period of at least thirty (30) days.    
 
c) Recipient may stagger the suspensions of Jill Masterson and Danna Sutton in 

order to ensure the continuity of Recipient WCHA’s operations.  
 
d) The suspensions must be served within 6 months of the effective date of this 

Agreement.  
 

e) Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Agreement, Recipient shall 
implement a written policy that requires its employees to complete the 
program form titled, "Zero-Income Checklist," in accordance with the form's 
instructions and program regulations, for program applicants or current 
program participants who are required to submit said form.  Recipient’s 
employees shall explain to program participants that the Zero-Income 
Checklist regards the program participants’ current expenditures.  Program 
participants are expected to provide Recipient with all necessary information 
to complete the Zero-Income Checklist.  Recipient staff shall use the 
Employment Income Verification System (“EIV”) to verify program 
participants’ income.   
  

f) Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Agreement, Recipient shall 
implement a written policy that requires its employees to provide program 
voucher-holders with a written record of the Total Contract Rent as stated on 
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Recipient's form titled, "Rent Calculation," upon the issuance of said program 
vouchers. 

 
g) Recognizing its obligation to affirmatively further fair housing, within sixty (60) 

days of the effective date of this Agreement, Recipient shall submit to the 
Department, for its review and consideration, an Analysis of Impediments 
(“AI”) to fair housing choice, in accordance with the requirements set forth at 24 
C.F.R. § 903.7(o)(3).    Recipient agrees that the AI shall: (1) examine its 
programs or proposed programs; (2) identify any impediments to fair housing 
choice within those programs; (3) address those impediments in a reasonable 
fashion in view of the resources available; (4) require and identify how Recipient 
will work with local jurisdictions to implement any of the jurisdiction’s 
initiatives to affirmatively further fair housing that requires the PHA’s 
involvement; and (5) require Recipient to maintain records reflecting these 
analyses and actions.    

 
h) Upon approval by the Department, the AI shall be incorporated into Recipient’s 

Annual Plan.  Recipient is encouraged to seek guidance from the Department in 
meeting this requirement.   If Recipient uses a consultant to carry out its 
obligations under this paragraph, the Department must approve the selection of 
such consultant.  

 
i) Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this Agreement, Recipient shall 

submit to the Department, for its review and consideration, an Affirmative Fair 
Housing Marketing Plan, in accordance with the requirements set forth in 24 
C.F.R. § 200.600, Subpart M.  Recipient is encouraged to seek guidance from 
the Department in meeting this requirement.  If Recipient uses a consultant to 
carry out its obligations under this paragraph, the Department must approve the 
selection of such consultant. 

 
j) Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Agreement, Recipient shall 

provide HUD with a copy of the agenda from the fair housing training that its 
employees received from Nan McKay Consultants.   If after the Department 
reviews the aforementioned training agenda and approves the training as 
sufficient in training Recipient’s employees, HUD will not require additional 
training of Recipient’s employees.     If HUD determines that the training was 
deficient, Recipient agrees to contract with a HUD-approved entity to provide 
Recipient’s staff with additional fair housing training.   Recipient agrees that 
within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this Agreement, Recipient shall 
contract with a HUD-approved entity to provide at least four (4) hours of fair 
housing training for Recipient’s board of directors and, if still needed, 
Recipient’s employees.   

 
k) Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Agreement, Recipient shall 

cause an additional employee to be certified on the EIV.     
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l) Upon execution of this Agreement, Recipient shall submit semi-annual reports to 
the Department for a period of two (2) years.  The semi-annual reports shall 
include the following information: 

 
1. Current waiting lists for all federally-funded programs, (if applicable); 

 
2. Information pertaining to all program applicants, including application 

date, applicant name, address, telephone number, race/ethnicity, and 
dates and reasons for cancellation or rejection (if applicable); 

 
3. Information pertaining to participants in its  Housing Choice Voucher 

Program, including voucher issuance date, lease date, tenant name, 
leased address, telephone number, race/ethnicity,1

 

 number of 
dependents, number of qualified bedrooms, number of leased 
bedrooms, zero-income status, total annual income, utility allowance, 
rent to owner, tenant rent, HAP amount, utility reimbursement or 
allowance amount, landlord name and telephone number, HQS 
inspection date, HQS inspection result, HQS re-inspection date and 
result (if applicable); and 

4. Information pertaining to participants in its Public Housing Program, 
including lease date, tenant name, leased address, race/ethnicity, total 
annual income, adjusted annual income, rent to owner, tenant rent. 

 
F. MONITORING 
 
9. Recipient agrees and understands that pursuant to a situation that reasonably so 

warrants, the Secretary may review compliance with this Agreement.  As a part of 
such review, the Secretary may reasonably require written reports and/or 
photographs concerning compliance, may inspect the premises, interview staff, 
and examine and copy pertinent records of Recipient at any reasonable time 
between the effective date of this Agreement and two (2) years from said date.   

 
10. The Department shall determine whether Recipient has complied with the terms 

of this Agreement.  If the Department determines at any point during the two-year 
term of this Agreement that there has been noncompliance with one or more 
provisions, the Department shall provide the Recipient with written notice and a 
description of the noncompliance.  The notice shall also provide Recipient two 
month’s time to affect compliance or otherwise explain why Recipient believes 
there is no noncompliance. 
 

G.   REPORTING AND RECORDKEEPING 
 

                     
1 Such information shall be contingent on the applicant identifying his or her race/ethnicity on the program 
application.   Recipient is not required to include such information in the semi-annual report if the 
information is not provided by the applicant. 
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11. Within thirty (30) days after the completion of the respective employment 
suspensions of Danna Sutton and Jill Masterson, Recipient shall submit to the 
Department written certification of same.   
 

12. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Agreement, Recipient shall 
submit to the Department copies of the written policies required by Paragraphs E (8) 
(b) and (c) of this Agreement. 
 

13. Within one-hundred eighty (180) days of the effective date of this Agreement, 
Recipient shall submit to the Department proof or certification of training 
attendance, as required by Paragraph E (8)(g) and (h)  of this Agreement.  
 

14. All required certifications, reports, and/or documentation of compliance must be 
submitted to: 

 
U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development 
Barbara Knox, Director 
Region V, Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity 
77 W. Jackson Blvd. Room 2101 
Chicago, IL  60604 

 
H. CONSEQUENCES OF BREACH 
 
15. Failure to carry out the terms of this Agreement may result in the suspension or 

termination of, or refusal to grant or to continue federal financial assistance, or other 
actions authorized by law.   

 
I. SIGNATURES 
 
 
 
__________________________________    _______________________               
On behalf of Recipient    Date                                        
 
 
J.  APPROVAL 
 
 
 
_____________________________________  ______________________ 
Director, FHEO Region V     Date   
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